Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Rochdale South Township Delegated SubCommittee
Tuesday 2nd March 2021
6.00 pm.
Zoom Meeting

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

5

Minutes
To consider the Minutes of the Rochdale South Delegated SubCommittee held on 10th December 2020.

3-4

6

Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/21

5 - 59

To consider the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods.
7

Rochdale e-Scooter Trial - Approval to Raise an Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order
To consider the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods.

Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee Members
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Elsie Wraighte
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services
01706 924711
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

60 - 62

Agenda Item 5
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 10 December 2020
PRESENT: Councillors Zaman (Chair), Shakil Ahmed, Meredith, Rashid, Zaheer,
Angela Smith and Sullivan
OFFICERS: Nazam Suleman (Resources Directorate), Rachel Hudson, Nathan
Mc Kendrey, Michael Buczman (Neighbourhoods Directorate)
APOLOGIES
26
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Wraighte, Hornby and
Nickson.
URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
27
There were no urgent items of business.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
28
There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES
29
Resolved:
That the Minutes held on the 20th October be approved as a correct record.
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21
30
The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which
provided an update on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and balances
of Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/2021 and to enable the allocation of funds
to proposed projects.
In considering the funding applications the Sub-Committee received oral
representations from the applicant’s and/or their representatives, who were in
attendance at the meeting.
Alternatives considered:
Members were asked to decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to
projects/schemes as appropriate.
Resolved:
1.
That the expenditure, commitments and balances of the Rochdale South
Township Funds 2020/21, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted report
be noted;
2.
That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3
of the submitted report be noted;
3.
That the Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the
Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the Sub-Committee, be given
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects;
4.
It be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has assessed

Page 3

the proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for
the Rochdale South Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any specific
risks have been identified in the report;
5.
That applications for Township Funds 2020/21, (as outlined at Appendix 4 of
the submitted report); and be dealt with as follows:Reference Project Name
TC/0620
Reservoir Street Waiting
Restrictions
TC/22/20
Percy Street Parking
Provision

TC/23/20

Balderstone Park CCTV

Decision
Refused
Approved £44,840 (includes additional
£1,500 for Legal fees required to relocate
the speed hump). Allocation of £36,148
from Capital Fund slippage 2021/22 and
£525 from Projects Fund plus a
contribution of £8,167 from Kingsway
Ward and Members Funds
Approved £13,311.60 from Projects Fund

Reasons for the decisions:
i)
The management of the Rochdale South Township Fund is delegated to the
Rochdale South Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub Committee.
ii)
Rochdale South Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.
iii)
To enable the Sub-Committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale
South Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Eligible for call in – Yes.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6
Report to Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

2 March 2021
Cabinet Member for A
Safer and Inclusive
Community
Sharron Worrall
Public Document

Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/21
1.
1.1

2.

Executive Summary
Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/21 and enable the
allocation of funds to proposed projects.
Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
South Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Rochdale South Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice
Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee, to be given delegated
authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Rochdale South Township Fund is delegated to the
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2

Rochdale South Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 5

3.3

4.

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale South
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/21 in Appendix 1 and 2.
Actual/committed spend for revenue funds is 76.93% and capital funds is
100%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale South
Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of the
projects that have been agreed within their Ward. Members are asked to note
the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last
committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale South Township
Funds 2020/21. Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or
defer the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects
listed in Appendix 4.

4.4

To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2020/21, Members
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Rochdale South Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2020/21 in
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Rochdale South Township Fund to ensure best use of available
resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.
6.1

Risk and Policy Implications
Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

Page 6

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line
with the identified priorities.

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those
priorities.

6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the
Council has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of
any changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to
provide them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with
them and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their
obligations under the Compact.

7.
7.1

Consultation
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular
monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding
requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be consulted
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall Tel: 01706 924802
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 7

APPENDIX 1

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

£

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Total budget for 2020/21
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

22,947
107,953
51,916
182,816
84,494
56,151
140,644
42,172

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

182,816
-

Page 8

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE

Funds

Members Fund
Ward Fund
Projects Fund
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2020/21)
Total

REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE

Budget
b/f 2019/20
£
22,947
22,947

42,170

% Actual
Spend
46.22%

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
30,000
30,000
47,953
107,953

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
£
51,916
51,916

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£
30,000
30,000
99,869
22,947
182,816

% Actual +
Committed
76.93%

Committed
£
18,464
15,746
21,941
56,151

Actuals
£
5,786
5,290
3,792
500
15,368

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
5,750
8,964
(1,505)
55,412
1,505
(1,000)
69,126

Total
£
30,000
29,999
57,699
22,946
140,644

Budget
remaining
2020/21
£
0
1
42,170
1
42,172

APPENDIX 2

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL

3,603
103,280
106,883
106,883
106,883
-

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

106,883
-

Page 9

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Total budget for 2020/21
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

Funds

Capital Fund
Total

CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
100.00%

£

Budget
b/f 2019/20
£
3,603
3,603

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
103,280
103,280

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
£
-

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£
106,883
106,883

% Actual +
Committed
100.00%

Committed
£
-

Actuals
£
6,240
6,240

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
100,643
100,643

Total
£
106,883
106,883

Budget
remaining
2020/21
£
-

APPENDIX 3

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson
of Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee
Name of Project

Project Description

W/13/20

Enjoying the out of
doors

Girlguiding Rochdale East and West deliver activities that enable Bamford
girls and young women to gain life skills, build friendships,
increase self-confidence and have fun. A heavy duty pop up
gazebo and folding picnic tables with attached seating will enable
members to participate and enjoy camping, picnics, outdoor nature
study and weekly meetings in good weather. This equipment will
be invaluable once the Covid restrictions ease to allow members
once again to meet safely out of doors.

W/31/20

Castleton Christmas
Tree Lights

W/40/20

Castleton Village
Festive Lighting
Features

Provision of low energy multi-coloured LED lights for the Castleton Castleton
Christmas tree as the existing lights are beyond economical repair
and the new lights will enhance the festive display in the village
centre and reduce energy consumption.
Provision of two new illuminated festive features on street lighting Castleton
columns in Castleton Village to extend and enhance the existing
display that will involve the installation of the electrical
infrastructure including timers, RCD protection and sockets on two
street lighting columns. These festive features will be maintained
for a five year period consisting of the fit and removal of the
illuminated features each year and the maintenance of the
electrical infrastructure. Expectation is that the LED features on
aluminium frames will be maintenance free for 5 years.

M/26/20

9th Heywood (St.
Michael’s) Scout
Group Hut chairs and
storage trolley

Page 10

Ref No.

Ward

9th Heywood (St. Michael’s) Scout Group propose to replace their Bamford
existing stock of chairs with a new bundled package of 84
lightweight folding chairs and a storage trolley. The chairs will be
suitable for outdoor and indoor events as they can easily be folded
and moved safely. This furniture will enhance the amenities
available in the new HQ building for the benefit of members of the
Scout Group and local community groups who will be welcome to
use the facilities.

Page 1 of 4

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£925 04 December 2020 Awarded £925 from
Ward Fund

Amount

£476.50 10 December 2020

£2,964.86 10 December 2020

£1,000 14 December 2020

Awarded £476.50
from Ward Fund

Awarded £2,964.86
from Ward Fund

Awarded £1,000
from Members
Fund

Ward

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£500 04 January 2021
Awarded £500 from
Members Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

M/29/20

St Clement's Football
Club Saint’s Fifth
Team Football Kit &
Equipment

Rochdale St Clements Football Club provides children and young Bamford
people with the opportunity to receive football coaching and play
matches at quality facilities. An additional team for young people
has been launched and additional football kits and equipment are
required. The provision of football kits and equipment will give the
team an identity and encourage local young people to participate
in a sport that promotes health and wellbeing, improves their social
skills, builds their confidence and provides a positive activity to
occupy their time.

M/34/20

Rochdalians AFC
Ground development/
facility maintenance
stage 1

Rochdalians AFC maintain and develop the facilities at Springhill Balderstone
Playing Fields under licence from Rochdale Borough Council that & Kirkholt
include the pitches, changing facilities and kitchen/tuck shop.
Opportunities to participate in football are provided to local youths
and adults with teams for U6 to U9, U17 and adults (two Saturday
and one Sunday team). The kitchen requires a replacement water
boiler to ensure players and club supporters have access to hot
refreshments and light weight petrol brush cutters are needed after
a break in resulted in the loss of this equipment to maintain the
pitches.

£985.98 06 January 2021

M/35/20

Kirkholt Bowling Club
Green Maintenance
Equipment

Kirkholt Bowling Club provides recreational bowling opportunities
for the local community in the ward with an emphasis on
encouraging young people to participate in this diversionary
activity plus a socially inclusive sport for older people. The club
propose to acquire equipment to maintain the grounds of the
bowling club. A water removal machine will efficiently remove
surface water from the bowling green to ensure fixtures can
continue despite adverse weather conditions. A leaf blower will
clear leaves from the footpaths and shelters around the club’s
green to prevent them becoming slipping hazards.

Balderstone
& Kirkholt

£1,000 14 January 2021

Awarded £1,000
from Members
Fund

W/38/20

Bridge JFC Girls
Goalposts

Bamford
Bridge Junior Football Club require the provision of four portable
goal frames to support local young girls in developing their skills to
participate in leagues across the borough.

£1,000 21 January 2021

Awarded £1,000
from Ward Fund

Page 11

Ref No.

Page 2 of 4

Amount

Awarded £985.98
from Member Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

M/09/20

The Willows Summer
House

Balderstone
GP Care Services manage The Willows Dementia Hub that
& Kirkholt
provides high quality support and care for people living with
dementia and their families. The Willows offers residential,
respite, comfort days and a sit in service with facilities of TV
lounge and dining room communal areas, Woodlands café and
landscaped gardens with easy access pathways. Covid guidelines
have restricted/stopped visits from families and GP Care Services
are looking to the future when visits can recommence safely whilst
ensuring the visiting experience is pleasant and stress free for all
concerned. A Summer House located in The Willows’ gardens
with disabled access and an electricity supply will facilitate
reintroducing the connection between families and their loved ones
whilst reducing the possibility of infection to residents in the
communal lounges, etc. The environment can be infection
controlled from Covid or any future viruses. In addition, the
provision of a Summer House will reduce numbers of visitors to the
residential lounges that can cause some residents anxiety and
distress in the confined spaces of the lounges.

M/36/20

Innings Way Tree
Works

Castleton
Pruning and removal of self-seeded trees on Council land near
Innings Way, Castleton to address the concerns of local residents
as the height and condition of some of the trees are a danger to
their properties.

M/38/20

Rochdale Light
Orchestra Equipment

Bamford
Rochdale Light Orchestra promote, develop and maintain public
education in, and appreciation of, light music in all its aspects. A
rehearsal and performance orchestra whose members are
available for public concerts, recitals and workshops within
Rochdale. Amateur musicians are provided a platform to perform
and socialise with Rochdale Light Orchestra offering a programme
of music for the enjoyment of local audiences. Rochdale Light
Orchestra propose to enhance the ensemble sound and widen the
range of music performed with a portable amplifier/PA system,
xylophone for their percussionist and scores.

Page 12

Ref No.

Ward

Page 3 of 4

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£2,000 04 February 2021
Awarded £2,000
from Members
Fund

Amount

£1,000 15 February 2021

£500 17 February 2021

Awarded £1,000
from Members
Fund
Awarded £500 from
Members Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

W/45/20

Springfield Park tree
planting project
(Canada geese
control)

Bamford
Tree planting in Springfield Park to disrupt the flight path of
Canada geese to and from the mere and access to the adjacent
mown plots by the mere as landing/take off and grazing areas with
the aim of controlling the numbers of geese and reduce the
pollution in the water from geese faeces. Notices will be installed
around the mere asking the public not to feed the geese to support
this project. Long term this additional tree planting in Springfield
Park has the potential to create a new arboretum, enhance public
interest in the park via a proposed tree trail, provide more shaded
areas during hot summer days for park users, increase accessible
green spaces as the trees will improve drainage in the park and
support a future application for Green Flag Award status. City of
Trees (a movement instigated by The Oglesby Charitable Trust
and Community Forest Trust) has agree match funding this initial
tree planting in the park towards their objectives of planting 3
million trees within a generation, bringing woodlands back into use
for the community and connecting people to nature in Greater
Manchester.

Page 13

Ref No.

Ward

Page 4 of 4

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£3,000 18 February 2021
Awarded £3,000
from Ward Fund

Amount

APPENDIX 4
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21

Projects Fund available for allocation = £42,170

Rochdale South Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Name of Project

Ward

Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

RP/12/20

Tackling Minds

Rochdale
Township

Yes
People

Project Description

Tackling Minds Community Interest Company organise angling events to improve the health and wellbeing of the local community with a focus on increasing
participation from people with mental health, addiction and recovery issues, experiencing social deprivation, disabilities and long-term health conditions.
Working in partnership with eighteen other organisations within the Borough as part of a Social Prescribing Network, Tackling Minds aims to make their
services accessible to the people that need it; providing our community with opportunities to take ownership of their health and wellbeing and to live
healthier lives. The Angling Trust Get Fishing Award is incorporated into the Tackling Minds events that offer fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families
and individuals of all abilities. Tackling Minds aims to supply each and every angler that completes the Get Fishing Award with their very own introductory
start-up kit and keeps them engaged with informal and formal competitions, target species or a style of fishing and the opportunity to fish at numerous
venues across the region. Tackling Minds plan to promote their services with the creation of a web site, advertising on social media, information pamphlets
and establish their own merchandise line to generate funds to support their community projects. As a boroughwide project, this application has also been
submitted to Heywood, Middleton and Pennines Townships to seek a contribution based on the number of people using their service from each of the
Townships as identified in the application form. The grant amount required for the Rochdale Township wide element has been split pro rata between
Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township. (Application form at Appendix 4A)

Page 14

Ref

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/21/20

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Tackling Minds

£2,874.46

None
Rochdale St
£682.36
Clements Football
Club
Rochdale St Clement’s Football Club arrange association football matches, deliver coaching and development for players to fulfil their potential and their
facilities provide a safe and supportive environment for young people wishing to take part in sporting activities. Burton Park playing fields at Crowneast
Street, Rochdale is leased by the club from Rochdale Council and the club are responsible for the pitches and extended changing rooms. A growing
number of people are gaining entry and misusing the grounds. Irresponsible dog owners are allowing their dogs to foul and damage the pitches and when
challenged by club members become aggressive and threatening. In addition, the gates have been damaged and motorbikes and quads have caused
damage to the pitches. Installation of standard security mesh fencing at seven points of entry to the pitches will address this anti-social behaviour and make
the pitches safe for players and club members. Cost split pro rata between Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township as issue raised within
the application is relevant to wards in each Township. (Application form at Appendix 4B)

Football v Anti social behaviour at Burton Park (aka Sandy Brow)

Rochdale
Township

Yes
Place

Rochdale Council's Estates Manager has advised the lease between Rochdale St Clement's Football Club and Rochdale Council requires the Council's
consent prior to installation of fencing. Clause 25.1 states: "The Tenant shall not make any external or structural alteration or addition to the Property
without the consent of the Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld and shall not make any opening in the boundary structure of the
Property." (Property is defined as the land and buildings). In addition, the Council's consent as landlord is also required prior to the club as tenant
submitting any planning application in respect of the property if the fencing requires planning permission.

Page 1 of 3

Rochdale South Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

Ward

RP/11/20

Chicane barrier and replace fence at Lock 24, Off Crawford Street

Kingsway

Project Description

Supply and installation of missing sections of fence and metal chicane at Rochdale Canal/Crawford Street to prevent motorcycle access to the canal tow
path. (Project brief at Appendix 4C)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/15/20

None

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Page 15

RP/19/20

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Yes
Councillor Shakil
Place & People Ahmed

£2,178

Bamford

Yes
Ward Councillors
£4,500
Place
Introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Half Acre Drive to Linnet Hill, Rochdale as double parking on this narrow carriageway is causing
problems with gaining access to the estate. Also waiting restrictions at the junction of Linnet Hill and Half Acre Road. Vehicles parking near the junction
with Bury Road are impeding the safe movement of traffic from Bury Road onto Half Acre Drive causing queueing on Bury Road. (Project brief at Appendix
4D)

Half Acre Drive and Linnet Hill Waiting Restrictions

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development
resulting in additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward
Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any
objections received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.
Kingsway

Yes
Councillor Shakil
£5,500
Place
Ahmed
Introduction of waiting restrictions on the northerly end of Count Street with localised junction protection of no waiting at any time and southerly end of Count
Street with no waiting at any time at the junction with Kingsway and a single yellow line no waiting 9am-5pm along one side of the street up the junction with
Newton Street. In addition, 10m no waiting at any time restrictions at the junction of Royds Street and Sandfield Street, Rochdale on all sides of the road.
Complaints have been received about double parking and congestion in this built up area and the proposed introduction of restrictions will ensure traffic flow
and reduce cars parking on footways. (Project brief at Appendix 4E)

Count Street/Kingsway Waiting Restrictions

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development
resulting in additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward
Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any
objections received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Page 2 of 3

Rochdale South Township Projects Fund 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

RP/22/20

Yes
Councillor Shakil
£5,366.19
Place
Ahmed
Provision of an additional lighting point on a footpath between Palatine Street and Adrian Terrace, Rochdale that will require extending the existing PCN
ducting and installation of additional duct to a new column location. The new six metre column fitted with an energy efficient LED lantern will enhance the
lighting in the area and improve public safety. (Project brief at Appendix 4F)

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/24/20
Project Description

Page 16

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/25/20
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Ward
Kingsway

Palatine Street Alleyway Street Light

The estimate may change if the street lighting column, ducting or cabling proposed location is affected once the work has started on site due to unforeseen
circumstances.
Rochdale
Yes
Member of public
£1,366.08
British Legion Grave Memorial Restoration
Township
Place
Restoration of the British Legion Grave for soldiers who died between 1914 and 1918 in the First World War located in Rochdale Cemetery involving
commissioning a local experienced mason to clean the memorial, check/reset loose kerbing and repaint lettering. Works will improve the condition and
visual appearance of the British Legion Grave and safeguard the future of this memorial in both its social and historical context as the community’s chosen
method of remembrance and important source of information for future generations. Cost split pro rata between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale
South Township as Rochdale Township wide project. (Photos of current condition of the British Legion Grave at Appendix 4G)
None
Bamford

Yes
Ward Councillors
£15,000
Place
The provision of pedestrian facilities at the junction of Bury Road and Sandy Lane, Rochdale would improve walking links within the area and pedestrian
safety. Highways to develop detailed proposals to improve the existing signalised junction of Bury Road and Sandy Lane with the primary aim of introducing
controlled pedestrian facilities. Preliminary traffic modelling has been undertaken to assess the effect introducing controlled crossing facilities would have
on the junction. The modelling has identified two possible schemes which would allow the introduction of pedestrian facilities and also improve traffic flow
through the junction. The detailed design of two potential options requires topographical surveys, investigation of existing underground utilities, fully assess
the proposed geometrical layout, produce detailed traffic signal design by TfGM and produce detailed cost estimates to upgrade the junction (Project brief
at Appendix 4H)

Bury Road and Sandy Lane Junction Investigation

Estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee and Ward Councillors do not require further information,
justification or scheme content. The two proposed designs cannot be progressed due to unforeseen issues and technical reasons requiring the developing
of alternative proposals.

Page 3 of 3

APPENDIX 4A

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/12/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Tackling Minds

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Tackling Minds

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Tackling Minds runs a number of angling events for people with mental health issues, social deprivation,
addiction and recovery, families, disabilities and long-term health conditions. We thrive off introducing
people to the sport. Our aim is to:
1. Increase participation in angling.
2. Increase the numbers of people getting active outdoors through angling.
3. Improve the health and wellbeing of those that take part.
4. Help people and communities develop with skills, education, volunteering and facilities.
5. Connect more people to nature through angling for their wellbeing and to improve the environment.
6. Increase the economic impact of angling and in particular deliver economic benefits in rural
communities and revenue to clubs, fisheries and businesses.
Tackling Minds has a large Facebook audience of over 7,000 Followers that we promote our angling events
to. We work closely with mental health organisations, schools and Social Prescribing Link Workers. We are
inundated with requests to participate in our events on a daily basis. One parent asked:
"Hi Tackling Minds, I've seen your post on Facebook and was seeing if you have anything to offer for my
son. My son
is 14. He has Asperger's which can affect his ability to mix easily with his peers. He is
currently going through an eating disorder and has a low mood which was exacerbated during the lockdown.
Is there anything that could be of help to him??"
Parent
Tackling Minds wants to make a distinctive contribution to people’s health and wellbeing in three ways:
i) We want to incorporate a range of fishing methods that increase activity levels and encourage activity
amongst the inactive, those recovering from illness and older age groups who may not participate in
other sports. For example; Predator Fishing. This type of angling is an excellent source of exercise,
especially in Winter. This type of angling involves actively seeking out the fish in numerous locations on
the water being fished. Repeatedly casting and retrieving the bait to lure the predator, which is a
surprising form of exercise to the upper body.

Page 17
Form RT03

ii)

We want to incorporate the therapeutic engagement that angling brings. In turn, this brings people into
contact with ‘blue-green spaces’, and as a consequence helps maintain positive mental health, provides
stress relief and can support programmes for people experiencing mental illness.
iii) By bringing people together, we want to provide a rich social world that facilitates the relationship
building, connection and participation in social life essential to securing wellbeing and active ageing.
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) identifies key issues affecting the health and wellbeing of our
residents, both now and in the future.
In JSNA, loneliness is measured by the proportion of adult social care users who do not have as much
social contact as they would like. In Rochdale it was 49.1%, above the England average of 45.4%. It is very
clear to see there is a need for a service like ours.
Tackling Minds need to focus on generating maximum income from the sale of company merchandises.
These come in the form of t-shirts, hoodies, baseball caps and mobile phone cases. We have a number of
other ideas for merchandises in the future. The benefits include increased sustainability, and potentially the
earmarking of funds each year to support community projects. We should therefore explore any potential
sources of funds and investments to develop and implement an effective marketing strategy. Any business
development or capital funds should focus on improving our facilities with a view of generating additional
income and making the venues more sustainable in the long term.
Tackling Minds has already produced a number of designs. Through intensive market research, we have
seen that there is a demand for our merchandise.
d) Contact name

David Lyons

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address

fishing@tacklingminds.org

h) Web address

https://www.facebook.com/Tacklingmindsuk/

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 18
Form RT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Evidence based research shows that fishing has been proven to benefit people suffering from mental health.
By getting people more engaged with one another, getting people more active, in the green open spaces,
fishing can benefit people in more ways than one.
Tackling Minds provides a safe, supportive, accessible and affordable environment within which the
community’s diverse population can enjoy a range of cultural, educational, leisure and social activities. This
in turn, helps to nourish and develop their own aspirations, as well as providing a focal point for developing
the cohesion and vitality of the community itself.
Our weekly sessions have become very important to those involved. One parent said “Taking part in the
Tackling Mind events, means that my son has had a chance to make friends. He is sometimes bullied at
school, and finds it hard to socialise. Tackling Minds has made him much happier, and this has helped his
confidence. He is now even enjoying school more.”
– Parent
Tackling Minds has recently joined forces with a number of local organisations, to form a Social Prescribing
Network. Please see attached proposed structure of the network. In January on behalf of the network,
Petrus submitted an application to the NASP, supported by Public Health, 2 GP Practice, the Rochdale
Health Alliance and the 17 partner organisations. This comprises larger organisations such as KYP, Action
Together and Link for Life, as well as smaller micro and grassroots organisations such, as Tackling Minds.
We all have a mutual aim to support the health and wellbeing of our community through a social prescribing
model. Through this network we will develop a peer support training model with a quality framework,
supported by Action Together’s ‘Quality In Action’ Framework, and numerous training partners, to ensure
that all groups offering social prescribing activities are provided the opportunity to upskill; have the
opportunities to link with GPs and social prescribers, and to be supported to provide a range of health and
wellbeing activities, that are safe, evidence backed and place based. This will provide our community with
opportunities to take ownership of their health and wellbeing and to live healthier lives.
Tackling Minds has a network of volunteers that make our events possible. We have a number of licensed
Level 2 Angling Coaches that lead our events, and we also have over 40 volunteers with an extensive
knowledge of fishing, that are on hand to help too.
The Angling Trust has been paramount in helping establish Tackling Minds. They have been extremely
helpful in the startup process, and they have remained an excellent source of support to say the least.
Keeping in regular contact with the Angling Trust’s representatives, Tackling Minds has built a close
relationship with the Trust. We keep them up to date about our future events, participant development and
our continued success stories.
Tackling Minds incorporates the Angling Trust’s Get Fishing Award into our events. The Get Fishing events
are fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all abilities. Our quality assured angling
events helps people discover the wonders of angling. Whether it’s introducing newcomers to the sport,
people heading out for a day with the family, or getting back into angling, our events are a great way to get
out there doing something different and will teach people new outdoor skills.
We use the Get Fishing Awards to help take people on their first steps of their angling journey – from the
unforgettable excitement of catching their first fish, right through to becoming a more experienced angler
who can set up tackle, safely return fish and have the correct Environment Agency fishing license.
We have a library of fishing tackle for people to conquer every species of inland fish, and everything a
person needs to learn more about fishing. Our friendly volunteers will make everyone feel welcome.
One of the Tackling Minds’ unique features is that it is a 'neutral' environment for the many different
communities of interest within the local area, which makes it popular for people from all social and ethnic
backgrounds. This is shown through the number and range of community groups, voluntary organisations
and individuals that regularly use our service. Page 19
Form RT03

Tackling Minds has partnered up with 18 other organisations within the Borough. Turning Point, High Level,
Petrus and Link4Life are 4 of those organisations. We are currently in the process of making services, such
as Tackling Minds more accessible to the people that really need it.
Watch one of our successful events :
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HUD5h9mGVGk&t=3s
Tackling Minds has built up a great rapport with a number of different Angling Associations and fisheries
throughout the country. Through our excellent connections we have been granted permission to fish on
numerous venues throughout the North West.
Tackling Minds aims to supply each and every angler that completes the Get Fishing Award with their very
own introductory startup kit. Upon completion of the award, Tackling Minds will use informal and formal
competitions to keep participants engaged, including established championships and new forms such as
‘street fishing’.
To keep people returning on a regular basis, we have a number of concepts that will keep anglers
interested. We will target species or a style of fishing that commonly generates lots of action. On top of that
we will be using numerous venues across the region.
Tackling Minds has been in contact with a number of different organisations throughout each of the
Townships. We will supply further evidence on the different organisations we have contacted if requested.
Two of the organisations that we have contacted, estimate that the amount of people using our service will
be as follows: (please see attached files for supporting documents)
High Level - Drug and Alcohol Service:
Rochdale – 12
Heywood – 6
Middleton – 6
Pennines – 8
PETRUS - Homeless Charity
“At Petrus alone we have over 100 residents who we could promote and support to attend the Tackling
Minds sessions and hundreds more through those attending the Petrus Hub and our external volunteers
who access services such as PIER. I would expect a high level of interest in engaging with this project.
Through the developing network we can extend that promotion effectively to the wider community through
promotion to the two GP surgeries in the pilot with a combined footfall of 5998 people.”
Rachel Bennion
Service Manager PIER, Store, Volunteering and Co Production
As an estimate, we predict that the following service users from PETRUS will be:
Rochdale - 14
Heywood - 8
Middleton - 8
Pennines – 12
Total of both organisations:
Rochdale – 26
Heywood – 14
Middleton – 14
Pennines - 20
Project start date

4/5/2021

Project completion
date

4/2/2022

Page 20
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£24,199.15

b) Amount of grant required

£14,373.15

c) Amount from other sources

£9,826

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing

What they may fund
£4,900

Dates of funding decisions
January/February

Angling Trust (large project fund)

£4,926

January/February

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

10 x Fishing chairs @ £12.00
https://www.ikea.com/gb/en/p/nisse-folding-chair-black-30115066/

£120

10 x 4m elasticated whips @ £10.99
https://www.fishingtackleandbait.co.uk/en/Abu-Garcia-SiestaTelescopic-16.aspx

£109.90

5 x Feeder rod and reel combo @ £59.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-d-match-combo

£299.95

5 x Match rod and reel combo @ 59.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-d-match-combo

£299.95

6 x landing net @ £21.95
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/drennan-speedex-carp-landing-net

£131.70

6 x landing net handle @ £13.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/phoenix-extending-metal-landing-nethan

£83.94

4 x unhooking mat @ £19.99
Page 21
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-black-widow-unhooking-mat

£79.96
Form RT03

6 x rod rest @ £1.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/dinsmores-economy-v-rod-rest-75cm

£11.94

2 x Rod Holdall @ £29.99
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/advanta-endurance-quiver-5rod?gclid=C%20-ABhALEiwAXm6Iyd3iwf_L9Mi7ipQELGQmgI4wyShy6RcTJM_BDoDdBH6xoCB3UQAvD_BwE

£59.98

1 x Fishing tackle carryall @ £40
https://www.anglingdirect.co.uk/daiwa-black-widow-carryall

£40

1 x Net bag @ £39.99
https://www.matchmansupplies.co.uk/brands/prestoninnovations/preston s-competition-eva-net-bag-p0130095

£39.99

fishing tackle box @ £19.49
https://www.amazon.co.uk/Cantilever-Box-Adjustable-CompartmentsLunar/dp/B00XJOCXF4/ref=sr_1_10?dchild=1&keywords=fishing+tackl
e+box&qid=1611140486&s=sports&sr=1-10

£19.49

Replacement fishing tackle

£500

First Aid kit @ £23.55
https://www.amazon.co.uk/210-Piece-First-KitEmergency/dp/B07431BT96/ref=sr_1_1_sspa?_encoding=UTF8&c=ts
&dchild=1&keywords=First+Aid+Kits&qid=1611139479&s=drugstore&s
r=1-1spons&ts_id=2826566031&psc=1&spLa=ZW5jcnlwdGVkUXVhbGlma
WVyPUE4SVMyTkhER0QzTkcmZW5jcnlwdGVkSWQ9QTA2NTg4MzI
xTUdOU0pRSTA4Wks3JmVuY3J5cHRlZEFkSWQ9QTAwMjEzODRS
UUVKR0M0TkkyS1Umd2lkZ2V0TmFtZT1zcF9hdGYmYWN0aW9uPW
NsaWNrUmVkaXJlY3QmZG9Ob3RMb2dDbGljaz10cnVl

£23.55

Academic programmes: (See prices in attached file - Angling Trust will
pay half toward the cost - Prices below are half of the cost)
 Level 1 Angling Coaching Awards = £115 x 10
 Level 2 Angling Coaching Awards = £175 x 10

£1,150
£1,750

Office materials (stationery, printer)

£350

Storage (see quote in attached file)

£784.80

e-Commerce Website design –
1. https://householdquotes.co.uk/website-design-cost-guide/
2. https://authenticstyle.co.uk/how-much-does-an-ecommercewebsite

£2,000

Staff (Angling Coaches) @ £150 per session x 30

£4,500

Marketing (Social media Ads and information pamphlets)

£800

Volunteers and participants T-Shirts (see quote in attached file)

£918

Food and drink at events

£300
TOTAL £14,373.15

Page 22
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

David Lyons

Full name

Jennifer Smith

Position

Director

Position

Director

Date

02/02/2021

Date

02/02/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale
Township Office Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23
Form RT03

Kingsway And Kirkholt GP Surgeries
Delivery venue and referring partner

Connected to network area leads through the social prescribing team.

Page 24

Financial wellbeing
welfare support
community venue for
clients facing health
inequalities and Covid
risks.
Petrus Hub
KYP

Sport, leisure and
physical Activity
Link 4 Life Various locations
across the borough

Nature and
Environment

Coordinated by a
Project kickstart
Development Worker
across the whole
network.

Petrus PIER
Community
Garden

Arts and Culture
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Delivery model
Leads act as hub venues alongside utilising the GP practices as a delivery
venue.
Financial wellbeing
welfare support
community
Petrus Hub
KYP

Nature and
Environment

Arts and Culture
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Petrus PIER
Community
Garden

Sport, leisure and
physical Activity
Link 4 Life Various locations across
the borough

Page 25

Oversee the network area to engage other organisations within their area of
expertise with support from the development coordinator. E.G micro groups through
community catalysts, Rochdale Hornets, In Bloom, citizens advice, mountain training, something to aim foe.
See partnership table.

Work in partnership with core delivery partners in the following areas.

Training and Quality
Framework
Action Together
KYP
Petrus/The Learning
Foundry

Volunteering and
wider community
Networking
Action Together

Referring partners
Rochdale Health Alliance
Social Prescribing Team
Kingsway and Kirkholt

Evaluation, data
collection and health
outcomes monitoring
Hope Citadel
Shared Health

All of the above co-ordinated by a project development worker

Partnership Mapping – December 2020
Area of
/expertise
Art/
Culture

Nature/
Environment

Physical/
sport/leisure

Financial
wellbeing &
support

Page 26

Community Venue
Safe accessible spaces
Training

Referring
partners

Organisation/Group
Who have directly fed into the
consultation
Link 4 Life Touchstones

Organisations who have
expressed a general
interest
Manchester Camerata

Something to Aim For
Creative Health
Bring Me Sunshine
Petrus – PIER community Garden
Rochdale In Bloom
RBH (community engagement)
Get Up And Grow
Mountain Training
Link 4 Life
Rochdale Hornets

Contact Theatre

Cycling Without Age
Louise/ Deborah yoga/wellbeing
Tracy – nutrition and wellbeing
Petrus - Hub
KYP
Action Together/ Citizens advice
Petrus Hub and PIER
KYP
Link 4 Life facilities
Action Together
KYP
Creative Health (IT)
Social prescribing team

Others we could/should
contact
Rochdale Riverside
(PIER project pre-covid in design phase with RMBC and
library)

Tackling Minds
Ralph resonance centre –
train station walking group

Good Help Project
Access All Areas
The Learning Foundry in
partnership with Petrus

WEA
Rochdale Connections Trust

John Elliot Unit Birch Hill
(already engaged with PIER)
Community Mental Health
Team (already refer to PIER)

Health delivery and engagement

Health
Inequalities/at risk groups

Social Prescribing team and Rochdale
Health Alliance
Kingsway And Kirkholt GP Practices
Shared Health/Hope Citadel
Petrus (existing IAPT with Gaddums,
health services with RHA and HART)

Living Well

Shared Health/Hope Citadel

Homeless Action Response
Team (HART)
RBH Homelessness

other health and wellbeing

Petrus and Housing First
KYP
KYP
Petrus
Link For Life
Tracy – health and nutrition

General Interest
Funding partners

Public Health 20% Matched Funding

Children & Young People

Stroke Association
Health Watch

LGBT Foundation

MIND
Early Break
Rochdale Circle
Youth Service

We are delighted to be working alongside Tackling Minds, whilst the group is new in the
borough I have seen first hand the demand and need for this from our service users who
often request fishing as an activity but due to complex needs often need support to attend,
engage in this activity. Many of our service users have enduring mental health or physical
support needs so it was fantastic to hear of the work that was underway to develop a
provision that specifically supports peoples health and wellbeing and Dave’s enthusiasm
and passion to make it happen shines through.
Petrus were introduced to Tackling Minds through the Community Catalysts to join our
newly formed Social Prescribing Network. Please see attached proposed structure of the
network. In January on behalf of the network Petrus submitted an application to the NASP
supported by Public Health, 2 GP Practice, the Rochdale Health Alliance and the 17 partner
organisations comprising of larger organisations such as KYP, Action Together and Link for
Life as well as smaller micro and grassroots organisations such as Tackling Minds. We all
have a mutual aim to support the health and wellbeing of our community through a social
prescribing model. Through this network we will develop a peer support training model with
a quality framework supported by Action Together’s Quality In Action Framework and
numerous training partners to ensure that all groups offering social prescribing activities
are provided the opportunity to upskill; have the opportunities to link with GPs and social
prescribers and be supported to provide a range of health and wellbeing activities that are
safe, evidence backed and place based to provide our community with opportunities to take
ownership of their health and wellbeing and live healthier lives.
At Petrus alone we have over 100 residents who we could promote and support to attend
the Tackling Minds sessions and hundreds more through those attending the Petrus Hub
and our external volunteers who access services such as PIER. I would expect a high level
of interest in engaging with this project.
Through the developing network we can extend that promotion effectively to the wider
community through promotion to the two GP surgeries in the pilot with a combined footfall
of 5998 people.
I am happy to be contacted further in regards to Tackling Minds Township Application and
can be reached via email rachael.bennion@petrus.org.uk or phone 07970951631
Kindest regards,
Rachael Bennion
Service Manager PIER, Store, Volunteering and Coproduction

Page 27

20th January 2021

To whom it may concern,
I am writing this letter in support of David Lyons who has made contact with our
organisation to ask if he can support some of our Service Users who have mental
health problems through his fishing organisation.
As you know mental health problems are very high in the Borough of Rochdale and
are increasing due the current situation with Covid19. Any opportunity to help
people improve their mental health with outdoor activities should be supported.
The opportunity for people to feel part of something and in the course of that
increase their self-worth, which will in turn improve their mental health, is to be
encouraged and supported.
I am encouraged to know that David is planning this great opportunity where people
may learn a new activity which will help people for a sustained period of time.
Participating in any outdoor activities is, at this moment in time, hard particularly in
team sports. When the restrictions are lifted fishing is one of the activities where
you can feel part of something, connect with others socially and keep socially
distanced. This will no doubt benefit people and the Borough of Rochdale.
Yours sincerely

Callum Jones
Service Manager

Page 28
High Level Northern Trust Registered in England & Wales Charity Registration Number 1106699 Registered address
Champness Hall Drake Street Rochdale OL16 1PB Tel: 01706 860 247 E: highlevel@hlnt.org.uk

Bursary Reference No.
Angling Improvement Fund 2020/21

Coaching Bursary Application

Bursary Summary
The bursary you are applying for is from the Environment Agency and is money from
rod licence sales which is being put back into developing angling. To make the most
of this funding there are several conditions that are attached to completing your
coaching course. These terms and conditions are to ensure that the funding is well
used and has a positive impact on the future of angling.
Terms and Conditions Summary
If you are awarded a coaching bursary, you will be asked to pay your share of the
cost of the course, before starting the qualification. For Angling Support Coach this
is £115.00 and for Level 2 (Angling Lead Coach) the cost is £175.00.
It is important to realise that for Level 2 (Angling Lead Coach) you will also need to
attend a UK Coaching Safeguarding and Protecting Children Course and a three-hour
minimum First Aid course. These are a requirement for achieving the UKCC Level 2
qualification. The two courses are likely to cost roughly £30 each and should be
available through your local County Sports Partnership. We will also supply
information about sourcing suitable training when we acknowledge your application
for a Level 2 course place.
Both course fees include the cost of your coach licence free for the first year. After
you have qualified you will need to apply for a DBS to obtain your licence. This is
also free for coaches who do not charge for coaching; if you are charging for your
services, the DBS check costs £48.80. All DBS checks are processed by the Angling
Trust Coaching Centre. You will need to activate your licence once you have
completed and have been awarded your qualification: this is achieved by returning
the form supplied with your qualification certificate, together with any paperwork
required for your DBS check.
Once you have completed your qualification and activated your licence, you will be
asked to complete 10 voluntary coaching sessions, plus a brief report on how the
coaching bursary has helped and supported the people you coach during this time.
It is a condition of the bursary that you complete all stages, and if this is not
completed within 6 months of the assessment, then you will remain liable for the full
cost of the course.
We will consider any unforeseen circumstances if completing becomes a problem.

Apply for your bursary from
your participation manager.

Complete all paperwork and
pay your half of the course fee.
Attend and complete course.

Apply for coach licence

Please keep pages 1 and 2 for information: complete and return the
remainder of the document. (You may wish to keep a copy of pages 3-7 for your
own records.)

Page 29

Bursary Reference No.
Voluntary Coaching Log:
Venue
Pilsworth Fishery

Activity
Get Fishing Awards

Date
24/10/2020
(This is just an
example, dates are
flexible).

Hours
2

Pilsworth Fishery

GFA

28/10/2020

2

Pilsworth Fishery

GFA

TBC

2

Pilsworth Fishery

TBC

Pilsworth Fishery

TBC

22 Hours

My coaching bursary has helped me to

Page 30

Bursary Reference No.
Angling Improvement Fund Bursary and Coach Agreement
The Angling Trust agrees to award a coach bursary to cover half of the cost of a
Level 1 Angling Support Coach Course/Level 2 Angling Lead Coach, conditional upon
the completion of the qualification, achievement of licensed coach status and
delivery of ten hours’ coaching on a voluntary basis.
I……………………………………………………………………………………… agree to the following terms
and conditions and understand that failure to fulfil the said terms and conditions may
render me liable for the full cost of the course. I agree to:
1. complete all paperwork and return no later than five weeks before the start
date of the course;
2. pay half the cost of the course, namely £115.00 Level 1 Angling Support
Coach or £175.00 Level 2 Angling Lead Coach;
3. complete the qualification, including UK Coaching Safeguarding and Protecting
Children training and a First Aid course for Level 2 Angling Lead Coach;
4. start activation of Coach Licence upon receipt of qualification certificate;
5. deliver 20 hours’ voluntary coaching;
6. write and return a brief report on the impact of your coaching on the people
you have coached.

Name of Bursary Recipient ….??????????……………………………………………...

Signed………………………………………………………………………Date…………………………….

Angling Trust Officer………………………………………………..Date……………………………..

Office Use Only:
Application Received/Deposit Paid………………………………………Date ………………..
Course Reference L1/L2………………………………….Date……………………..……………….
Qualification Certificate……………………………..…..Date………………………………………
Licence Issued………………………………………….……..Date………………………………………
Voluntary Hours/Report………………………………….Date………………………………………
Coaching Centre Manager Sign Off………………………………………Date……………………

Page 31

Bursary Reference No.

Angling Trust Coaching Centre in association with 1st4sport Qualifications
APPLICATION FORM: ANGLING TRUST COACHING COURSE

Level 1 Angling Support Coach 

Level 2 Angling Lead Coach 

Applicant’s personal information
Title

Mr 

Miss 

Mrs 

Date of Birth _ _ / _ _ / _ _ _ _

Ms 

Other . . . . . . . . . . .

Gender

Male  Female 

You must be 16 or over to take the L1 qualification, at least 18 to be awarded a certificate at L2

Forename(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Please give ALL FORENAMES even if you do not normally use them:
we need this information to access your Unique Learner Number

Surname

....................................................

Preferred forename if different, eg Sam instead of Samuel/Samantha . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Postal address

............................
............................

Town/City

............................

Postcode

_____ _____

Tel (landline)

.........

[County . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ]
Mobile . . . . . . . . .

........

............

Email
Please supply a name and telephone number for a relative, friend or neighbour who could be
contacted in the event of an emergency such as an accident to yourself.
EMERGENCY CONTACT NUMBER

.........

............

Name of emergency contact person

......................................

Details of the specific course for which you wish to apply (if known at this stage)
Venue name and postcode

......................................

Start date

__/__/____

The L1ASC is a generic award, and certificates do not show a specific angling discipline.
However Level 2 is discipline specific and your L2 certificate will be issued showing Coarse,
Game or Sea angling.
Level 2 applicants need to select ONE of the options below:
Coarse



Game



Sea



DECLARATION by applicant: Level 1 ASC £115.00* or Level 2 LAC £175.00*
*The course fee includes tuition, registration, learning and resources, but NOT travel, meals or
accommodation.
I declare that I fully understand the nature of the course for which I am applying and the 1st4sport
qualification that will be awarded to me on successful completion of the course attendance,
tasks and assessment procedures. I have read and hereby accept the Coaching Centre’s
Booking Terms and Conditions.
Signed:. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Date

Page 32

__/__/____

Bursary Reference No.
Coaching Course Applications: Medical & Special Requirements Questionnaire
The Angling Trust is committed to meeting the needs of anyone wishing to participate in the
coaching of angling. To enable the Coaching Centre to make any necessary provision and
ensure that we can arrange for appropriate facilities and resources to be available, it would be
appreciated if you could supply information about any medical conditions that may be relevant
or any other special requirements.
If you have any disability, condition or special needs which you feel could hinder you from
participating fully in a course, please contact our office and we will put you in touch with an
appropriate person to discuss the matter in confidence. Please complete and return the
questionnaire even if you answer “No” to all questions.
♦ Do you have any allergies?

Yes

If Yes, please give brief details

No

......................................................
......................................................

♦ Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
If Yes, what is the nature of your disability?

Yes

No

...............................................
...............................................

Hearing
Mobility




Learning
Physical





Multiple 

Visual

Prefer not to say



Other, not included above . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
♦ Are you a wheelchair user?

Yes

No

♦ Do you take any regular medication?

Yes

No

If Yes, please give brief details

.........................................
........................................

You are advised that when attending a coaching course you should ensure that you have sufficient supplies
with you to self-medicate as necessary.

♦ Do you have any condition of which w should make the course tutor aware?
(For example: heart problems, angina, pacemaker; epilepsy; diabetes; difficulties with
reading/writing)
............................................................
............................................................
♦ Do you require any support to help us meet your needs?
(For example: help with mobility, reading/writing)
............................................................
............................................................
You are advised that any request for another person to assist you (eg as scribe or interpreter) will
need to be supported by written confirmation of the condition from which the request arises. This
could be a letter from a doctor, tutor or social worker and should be supplied by the application
deadline for your selected course, so that the Coaching Centre can apply to 1st4sport for
authorisation of adjustment to the assessment process. Please contact our office if you are unsure
how to provide appropriate evidence.

Page 33

Bursary Reference No.
Do you require any special safety equipment or visual aids beyond normal “classroom” provision?
.........................................................
Thank you for completing the medical questionnaire. Your responses will be passed in confidence to
the Coach Educator(s) so that appropriate provision can be made at the venue where you attend
your course.

Use of your personal information
We are required by 1st4sport, the body that awards the qualification, to ask for certain
information including your date of birth and contact details. These data are provided to 1st4sport
and to the tutors, assessors and verifiers who will deliver your course and process the content of
your coursework portfolio. Angling Trust also needs your contact details to keep in touch, supply
you with information about the course that you wish to attend and provide you with the relevant
information and materials.
You may be contacted by the Coaching Centre’s administrators or Coach Educators in
connection with course arrangements but your personal information will not be passed to other
bodies for marketing or sales purposes.
Some of the information you supply will be used to access/verify your Unique Learner Number
(ULN) and update or check your Personal Learning Record. The Skills Funding Agency may share
your ULN and Personal Learning Record with other education related organisations, such as your
careers service, school, college, university, Government Departments and public bodies
responsible for funding your education. Further details of how your information is processed and
shared can be found on the website of the Learning Records Service at:
www.learningrecordsservice.org.uk

Data Protection: authorisation to collect, store and process personal information
I give permission for the Angling Trust to record and store securely the information shown on
this application form for the purpose of enabling me to undertake my selected coaching
qualification.
I undertake to keep the Angling Trust Coaching Centre informed of any changes to my
contact information or conditions/requirements relevant to my completion of the coaching
course.

Signed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Date ___ / ___ / _________
Submitting your application
The completed application for your selected course with your remittance or payment instructions
can be submitted either by post or by email (see below for details).
Places on a course will be secured only if an application form has been received at our Ilkeston
office by the stated deadline, with payment of the required fee, instructions to invoice or your
request to be contacted to arrange card payment.
When we process your application, we will send some acknowledgement documents with
information about what happens next, the content of pre-course Welcome Packs, completing
pre-course tasks and approximate timescales for assessment and certification. For Level 2
applicants this will include information about sourcing UK Coaching Safeguarding & Protecting
Children training and appropriate First Aid.

Please note that we can’t allocate you a course place unless you complete and return this
form, even if you have already been given details of a specific event.

Page 34

Bursary Reference No.

Please indicate your payment method



♦ I enclose a cheque/Postal Order made payable to Angling Trust Ltd.



The receipt will be sent to the address you have supplied on this form unless you request otherwise.



♦ Please allow 2-3 days for your form to arrive, then ring 0115 822 4538 to supply
credit/debit card details. [Card details will not be retained once payment has been processed.
The receipt will be sent to the address on page 1 of this form unless you request otherwise.]



♦ I wish to pay by BACS/online transfer: please send an invoice to the address in the
personal information section of this form. You should include the invoice number in your transaction
reference if paying by this method.

♦ Please send an invoice to my sponsor. I understand that if the stated fee is not paid by the
required deadline I may forfeit my place on the selected course.
Details of the person who will be paying the fees and needs to be invoiced:
Name
Address

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

Postcode

______

______

Email
You should return your completed application form (pages 3 to 7 inclusive) to:
EITHER Angling Trust Coaching Centre
The Old Police Station
Wharncliffe Road
Ilkeston
DE7 5GF
OR
angela.woodgates@anglingtrust.net (please attach form as a Word document, PDF or
JPEG)
Please note that you can’t make a firm booking by telephone, via social media or through a third
party. We need your signed and completed form to prevent the possible transfer of inaccurate
personal details and to ensure that we comply with Data Protection regulations.
If you are posting your application, please ensure that you affix the correct postage for the size,
weight and thickness of your envelope. Royal Mail will not deliver underpaid items without levying
a surcharge which Angling Trust may have to pass on to you. In addition this could delay delivery
of your application and cause it to arrive after the booking deadline for your selected course.
You can find details of posting prices at www.royalmail.com or you can have your item weighed
and measured at your local Post Office.

We need your application no later than five weeks before the start date of your
selected course. If you haven’t yet been offered a specific coaching event, please
send the form as soon as possible anyway, so that we can suggest courses that
might suit your requirements.

Page 35

Page 36

Tackling Minds

Description

Quantity

Unit Price

VAT

Amount GBP

AS Men's Staple Tee

100.00

3.30

20%

330.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

1 colour print

100.00

0.90

20%

90.00

Standard Screen Setup

4.00

15.00

20%

60.00

Standard Next Day Delivery

1.00

15.00

20%

15.00

Subtotal

765.00

TOTAL VAT 20%

153.00

TOTAL GBP

918.00

Please email us when payment has been made so we can process your order

Page 37

APPENDIX 4B

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/21/20

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Football v Anti Social behaviour at Burton Park (aka Sandy Brow)

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Rochdale St Clements FC

b) Type of organisation

Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
To provide organised training for all players of the club.
To provide equipment and facilities which meet approved safety standards and which enable teams to take
part in league competition across Lancashire and Greater Manchester.
To meet the standards and requirements of the Lancashire Amateur League
To provide coaching and development of individual players in order to help them fill their potential.
To provide a safe and supportive environment for young people wishing to take part in sporting activities.
To provide progression for youth teams to develop into Open Age football.

d) Contact name

Simon Lord

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

RochdaleStClements/pitchero
Page 38
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
We have received a contribution to the purchase of Goalposts approximately 4 years ago
We have received a contribution to kit approximately 3 years ago.
We applied for contribution to Kit funding this year.
Entered from Rochdale Township Office records:
January 2021 – M/29/20 Football kit and equipment (Grant £500)
August 2019 - M/09/19 Contribution to the hire of a local 3G facility (Grant £500)
January 2017 – M/49/16 Football kit (Grant £500)
October 2012 – M/10/12 Footballs for St Clement’s FC junior league (Grant £294.19)
December 2011 – M/45/11 Goal posts at Burton Park (Grant £1,850)
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

Our club has an agreement with the Council whereby we have responsibility for the above site
(pitches & extended changing rooms) for 99 years. As part of this we pay a charge of £1500 pa for
the first 10 years, after which payments end.
> We have continued to invest, maintain and develop the site in order to provide amateur football
for local young people. Our Elected Members have kindly supported the club and we generally
have good relations with local residents. Unfortunately, we continue to suffer badly from unwanted
visitors to the site, who allow their dogs to foul and damage the pitches. Despite signs and notices
there appears to be a growing number of people gaining entry and misusing our grounds. We have
pointed out the risk to young people’s safety due to fouling, but although there are some
responsible dog owners, the problems are getting worse and we have incidents of aggressive &
threatening behaviour.
> Having spoken to people who on occasions have up to 6 dogs with them, it is clear they are
exercising dogs as part of a business! In addition, some of the dogs brought onto Sandy Brow are
extremely aggressive, with owners who threaten to set them to attack our members, when informed
of our safety concerns. The attitudes of this minority is truly appalling. We have also had gates
damaged and motorbikes and Quads causing damage to pitches.
> We can provide lots of other examples if necessary, but we consider the only answer is to fence
off remaining points of entry to the pitches. The Council advised us some time ago that there are no
rights of way or preserved pathways on the site, so we see this to be the only solution. We would
like to have more signs put up to advise people what we intend, and then engage a contractor to
block off the unwanted visitors. We have involved the Police & they have endorsed the planned
fencing solution.
Project start date

February 2021

Project completion date

March 2021

Page 39
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£2,350 + VAT = £2,820

b) Amount of grant required

£999 +VAT = £1,198.80

c) Amount from other sources

£1,621.20

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Rochdale St Clements FC funds
raised

What they may fund
Contribution to fencing units and
labour

Dates of funding decisions
1/2/2021

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost
2,350

Fencing contractor used by RMBC
7 Points of Access onto Playing fields to be fenced off using
Fence panels supplied and fitted.

TOTAL £2350

Page 40
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure
NB a) & b) above: recently supplied
SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Simon Lord

Full name

Andrew Tomkinson

Position

Chairman

Position

Treasurer

Date

2/2/2021

Date

2/2/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.

Page 41
Form RT03

Aerial map showing proposal for fencing off current access points

Page 42

Fence type

Page 43

Hi Simon
Price for all fencing work to 7 locations around the grounds would be
This is for supply and installation
Thanks

Page 44

£2350

APPENDIX 4C

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale South

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Shakil Ahmed

Project Manager & Ext

Tracy Hibbert

Completed by

Tracy Hibbert

Township Ref

Service Ref

RP/11/20

Date Completed

24/11/20

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Rochdale Canal / Crawford Street Fence & Chicane

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To Manufacture , supply and install missing section of fence , also to
supply and install metal chicane to prevent access to canal tow path by
motorcycles

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

To improve area and prevent anti-social behavior by restricting access
to tow path of motor cycles .

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

Risks that may change estimate
No risks identified .

Total Estimated Fees (Nett)

£198.00

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett)

£1980.00

Total Cost (Nett)

£2178.00

Amount Approved by Township

£

Page 45

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date
(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Confirmation order will be sent to contractor when funding has been approved .

Completion Date
Evidence

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 46

APPENDIX 4D

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Ward Councillors

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan Mckendrey

Completed by

Joe Mclaughlin

Township Ref

Service Ref

RP/15/20

Date Completed

8/12/20

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Half Acre Drive & Linnet Hill no waiting restrictions, Rochdale

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

New no waiting at any time restrictions on Half Acre Drive to Linnet Hill.
Due to the narrowness of the carriageway and double parking it is
becoming increasing difficult for traffic to negotiate the road in order to
gain access to the estate. Vehicles parking too close to the junction
with Bury Road is impeding the safe movement of traffic from Bury
Road onto Half Acre Drive causing traffic on occasion to stop and
queue on Bury Road.

Scheme comments from
Highways

It is also proposed to introduce waiting restrictions at the junction of
Linnet Hill and Half Acre Road.
Highways support the scheme as it will improve traffic flow and the
safety of the network.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

To ensure the safe and expeditious movement of traffic.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate






The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.
There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been approved
and signed off.
The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.
The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received
during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be
expended.
This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate
 Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs.
 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.
Page 47



Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Total Estimated Fees

£4,000

Total Estimated Works Costs

£500

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£4,500

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence




A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received by
Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.
It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.
Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees.

Completion Date

Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
commencement of design

Evidence




A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.
It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.
Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

See attached email

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

08/12/2020

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 48

Page 49

APPENDIX 4E

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Shakil Ahmed

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan Mckendrey

Completed by

Joe Mclaughlin

Township Ref

Service Ref

RP/19/20

Date Completed

22/1/21

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

This proposal is for the introduction of waiting restrictions at either end
of Count Street, Rochdale. The northerly end would be localised
junction protection in the form of no waiting at any time. Southerly end
there would be a mixture of no waiting at any time at the junction with
Kingsway then a single yellow line no waiting 9am-5pm along one side
of the street up to the junction with Newton Street.
Introduce 10m no waiting at any time restrictions at the junction of
Royds Street and Sandfield Street, on all sides.

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Due to complaints received regarding double parking and congestion in
this built up area a site visit was carried out and the restriction
mentioned above are recommended due to the narrow carriageways
and double parking leading to vehicles not being able to pass.
Highways approve of this proposed scheme as it would ensure the free
and uninterrupted movement of traffic on the highway and reduce cars
parking on the footway freeing up footways for pedestrian use
The free, safe and expeditious movement of traffic and footpaths not
parked on and damaged

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

Scheme comments from
Highways

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate


The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.
 There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been approved
and signed off.
 The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.
 The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received
during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be
expended.
 This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.
Risks that may change estimate
 Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs
 Greater Risk of objections as the scheme covers three different areas, but this is being treated as one
scheme
TRO. One objection would prevent the whole
Page
50from being progressed.




The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.
Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Total Estimated Fees

£4000

Total Estimated Works Costs

£1500

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£5500

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence


A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received by
Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.
 It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.
 Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees
Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
Completion Date
commencement of design
Evidence





A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.
It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.
Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

See attached email

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

08/02/2021

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 51

Page 52

APPENDIX 4F

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale South

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Shakil Ahmed

Project Manager & Ext

John McAuley

Completed by

Garry Brown

Township Ref

Service Ref

RP/22/20

Date Completed

10/02/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Palatine Street Alleyway – Street Light

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To provide an additional lighting point on a footpath that runs between
Palatine Street and Adrian Terrace Rochdale.
There are existing columns on Adrian Terrace Nos 1A & 2A on Private
Cable Network fed from adjacent feeder pillar FP001.
The works will require extending existing PCN ducting and installing
additional duct to proposed new column location.
The project will include to installation of
x
x
x
x
x
x

6mtr R/L lighting column
V- max - LED lantern
20mtr 50mm ducting in Tarmac
65mtrs 3 Core SWA cable
1 Draw Pit / Chamber 450x450
Associated electrical connections / testing / commissioning

Scheme comments from
Highways
Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

The project will improve both the lighting in the area and public safety
using an energy efficient LED lantern with the functionality to dim
To enhance the lighting in the area and improve public safety

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
The assumptions are
1. The street lighting column can be installed in the proposed location
2. The street lighting proposed ducting and cabling can be installed
The cost to install the lighting would be - £ 4,581.84
The future maintenance costs for the streetlight would be £52.29 per annum and £784.35 (index linked) for
the term of the PFI contact in 2036
Page 53

Risks that may change estimate
The estimate may change if any of points 1 and 2 are affected once the work has started on site due to
unforeseen circumstances
Total Estimated Fees (Nett)

N/A

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett)

£4,581.84 (installation) + £52.29 (maintenance per
annum)

**Total Cost (Nett)
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£5,366.19

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 2 months of receiving commission.

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date
Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

10/02/21

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 54

APPENDIX 4G

Page 55

Page 56

APPENDIX 4H

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Ward Councillors

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan Mckendrey

Completed by

Nathan Mckendrey

Township Ref

Service Ref

RP/25/20

Date Completed

05/02/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Improvements to the junction of Bury Road and Sandy Lane to provide
pedestrian facilities

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To develop detailed proposals to improve the existing signalised
junction of Bury Road and Sandy Lane with the primary aim of
introducing controlled pedestrian facilities.
Preliminary traffic modelling has been undertaken to assess the effect
introducing controlled crossing facilities would have on the junction.
The modelling has identified two possible schemes which would allow
the introduction of pedestrian facilities and also improve traffic flow
through the junction.
This funding is requested to allow the detailed design of the two
potential options which would require, topographical surveys,
investigation of existing underground utilities, fully assess the proposed
geometrical layout, produce detailed traffic signal design by TfGM and
produce detailed estimates to upgrade the junction.

Scheme comments from
Highways

Highways and Ward Councillors regularly received enquiries over the
lack of pedestrian facilities at this junction. It has been recognised by
members of the public, Ward Councillors and the Highway Department
that the junction would benefit from the provisions of controlled crossing
facilities.
The provision of pedestrian facilities at the junction would improve
walking links within the area and improve pedestrian safety. Highways
fully support the development of proposals to improve the existing
junction at this location.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

To fully develop detailed proposals to upgrade the junction along with
detailed cost estimates.
It is hoped that by developing detailed proposals Highways will be in a
strong position to apply for capital funding or external grants to
implement the proposals in the future.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

Page 57

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate





The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.
There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.
The proposals does not include for implementing the scheme on site or any other works on site.
This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee.

Risks that may change estimate
 Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.
 The two proposed designs cannot be progressed due to unforce issues and technical reasons
requiring the developing alternative proposals
 Any other unforeseen issues
Total Estimated Fees

£12,500

Total Estimated Works Costs

£2,500

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£15,000

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence




A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.
It is envisaged that a start date will be within 6 months of receiving the commission.
Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

Completion Date

Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
commencement of design

Evidence




A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.
It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.
Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

See attached email

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

Page 58

05/20/2021

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Report to Rochdale South Township Committee

Date of Meeting

2nd March 2021

Portfolio

Neighbourhoods

Report Author

Darren McCrohan

Public/Private Document

Public

Rochdale e-Scooter Trial
Approval to Raise an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order

Executive Summary
1.

Following recent Cabinet approval for procurement, implementation and
operation of an intended e-scooter trial in the Borough (9th February 2021),
this Report is seeking approval of the Rochdale Townships (North and South)
to raise the necessary Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO).
Recommendation

2.

Township is asked to…


Note that following the Council’s successful application to Government
for 12-month trial operation of a rental e-scooter scheme, Cabinet
recently granted approval to commence the procurement process for
an appropriate rental operator to supply and manage the Council’s pilot
scheme.



Note that although specific details are yet to be confirmed, it is
envisaged that the trial area will encompass a 1 mile radius of the Town
Centre, including the Railway Station and other key amenities. The
trial period is intended to commence on 31st March 2021.



Note that only those e-scooters to be supplied and operated (with the
necessary insurance for riders) through the trial rental programme will
be legally permitted to use the public highway. Privately-owned and
operated e-scooters shall be excluded.



Note that the Council needs to ensure that all relevant TRO’s (for cycle
lanes and for any specific cycle tracks which would need to be redesignated) are changed on an experimental basis to formally
accommodate legal access and use by rental e-scooters.



Provide approval for Highways to commence the process of necessary
legal amendment through the raising of an ETRO for the e-scooter trial.

Page 60

Reason for Recommendation
3.

For the approved local trials, Government has amended the relevant
legislative framework and meanings for “cycle lanes”, together with any
associated facilities that may be used by cyclists, to permit their shared use
by e-scooters.
Although existing cycle lane signs and road markings do not need amendment
nor the provision of supplementary information, the Council does however
need to update all of its existing cycling-related TRO’s across the trial area by
means of an ETRO to include wording that permits use by rental e-scooters.
Key Points for Consideration

4.



Currently, e-scooters (given their motorised propulsion) fall under the legal
definition of a “motor vehicle” and accordingly their use on the public
highway is governed by the Road Traffic Act. This specifically requires
riders to be appropriately licenced and hold insurance and this has
historically resulted in significant limitations on use.



In seeking to broaden sustainable travel alternatives and reduce the
potential burden on public transport for local journeys, the Government
under current coronavirus legislation has promoted and is supporting trials
across the UK to evaluate operation and use of rental e-scooter schemes.



Trial schemes commenced in mid-2020 and are ongoing currently across
more than 25 local authority areas. Their objective is to evaluate
operational opportunities and risks together with identifying appropriate
mitigation that may support a wider future roll-out. Beyond the trials, this
could include possible regulatory changes which may treat e-scooters
more similarly to conventional and electrically assisted pedal cycles.



Evidence from other local authorities engaged already in rental e-scooter
trials has confirmed that they are typically promoting schemes by way of
an ETRO sitting outside and without detriment to the established TRO /
consolidation process.



An ETRO covering the Rochdale trial area will require statutory
engagement and following approval, will introduce a public consultation
exercise for a period of up to 6-months. Feedback received during this
engagement period will be reviewed and reported back to this Township.



The ETRO would extend for a period of 12-months covering duration of
the trial but may be withdrawn at any time.



Although no changes are necessary for existing cycle lane signs or road
markings, the trials will need to consider the need and costs for any
associated infrastructure and scheme publicity, including possible user
information signage and facilities for e-scooter parking.

Page 61

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

As reported recently to Cabinet, it is anticipated that the successful e-scooter
scheme operator will incur most of the costs, by providing approved vehicles,
and in implementing and operating the scheme.
The Council has made provision of up to £20,000 for procurement,
identification of additional supporting measures, and to prepare and
implement the ETRO necessary to support the trial.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

Government has already amended relevant legislation and is promoting
these trials to broaden sustainable travel opportunities for local travel.
Accordingly, it is supporting all participating local authorities in an advisory
capacity through regular engagement across all aspects of scheme
implementation, operation, monitoring and evaluation. Given the already
widespread levels of authority participation, including a trial ongoing locally
in Salford, risk is considered to be low.
Consultation

7.



The remit of the trial is for users, stakeholders and the wider public to
provide their views to help inform longer-term local and national decisionmaking.



The Rochdale trial has recently received Cabinet approval.



The Council, as with other neighbouring GM authorities, is engaged and
being supported by Transport for Greater Manchester.



The ETRO process will formally invite statutory and public consultation
for a period of circa 6-months and Members will be kept updated.

Background Papers
8.

e-Scooter Trial Proposal for Rochdale Borough Note Procurement
(Docs\Rochdale e-Scooter Trial Proposal Note - 14-1-2021.docx)

Draft Brief to appoint Rochdale e-Scooter Trial Operators Procurement
(Docs\Draft Brief to appoint Rochdale EScooter Trial Operators - 21-1-2021.docx)

Scorecard for e-Scooter Trial Selection Panel online event Procurement
(Docs\Scorecards for e-Scooter Trial Selection Panel Rochdale Borough - 13-1-2021.docx)

For Further Information Contact:

Nathan McKendrey
01706 924588
nathan.mckendrey@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 62

